

USER'S Manual

AirQWeb

Turnkey Instruments Ltd.

July 2016



User's Manual Authorization Memorandum

I have carefully assessed the User's Manual for AirQWeb. This document has been completed in accordance with the requirements of the Turnkey Instruments Development Methodology.

MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATION - Please check the appropriate statement.

_____ The document is accepted.

The document is accepted pending the changes noted.

The document is not accepted.

We fully accept the changes as needed improvements and authorize initiation of work to proceed. Based on our authority and judgment, the continued operation of this system is authorized.

Mike Leck Managing Director

Dave Brooks General Manager

Alan Taylor Director

DATE

DATE

DATE

USER'S MANUAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0	GENERAL INFORMATION
1.1	AirQWeb Overview1
1.2	Authorized Use Permission1
1.3 1.	Points of Contact 1 3.1 Information/Help Desk
1.4	Organization of the Manual1
2.0	SYSTEM SUMMARY
2.1	System Architecture
2.2	Data Flows
2.3	User Access Levels
2.4	Contingencies and Alternate Modes of Operation
3.0	GETTING STARTED
3.1	Register
3.2	Logging On
	System Menu
3.4	Logout System
4.0	USING AIRQWEB
4. 4. 4. 4.	Visualise Data81.1Instrument Selection81.2Select Date/Time91.3Data Table101.4Data Graph111.5Polar & Windrose Charts121.6Edit Data13
4.2	Instrument Comparison
4.3	Measure vs. Time
4.4	Auto Export Data
4.5	Generate Report
4.6	Start/Stop Sampling
4.7	Email & SMS Alerts

4.7.1	Email & SMS Alerts For Sound26
4.8	Upload Data
4.9	Configuration
4.10	Notifications
	Additional Features29.1Sound Stats2911.1.1Sound Date/Time Selection3011.1.2Sound Statistics30
4.11. 4.11. 4.11.	.3 Live Video .33 .4 3D Site Plans .34
4.11.	5
4.12 4.12 4.12 4.12 4.12	2 Remove Account (Viewer Only)
4.13	Update Profile
4.14	Update Instruments
4.15	Special Instructions for Error Correction
4.16	Caveats and Exceptions

1.0 GENERAL INFORMATION

1.0 GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 AirQWeb Overview

<u>AirQWeb</u> is a web application that allows you to analyse the results from the environment sensors that collect data on environmental information (TSP, PM10, PM2.5, and PM1) along with any external sensors such as pollutant gasses, vibration, noise levels etc. AirQWeb enables you to generate charts such as Table charts, Line charts, Area charts, Rose charts, Average Gauges and also charts with sliders to analyze the data for a specific time span. You can also control the instruments using this application such as start/stop sampling, change instrument configuration etc. You can import/export data and charts and generate reports as well using this web application.

When you buy a dust monitoring instrument from Turnkey Instruments Ltd. your account will be created and your instrument will be added to your account. You will be given a username and password to access your instrument(s) over the web using AirQWeb.

AirQWeb has been developed with multiple background services such as service that uploads the data from the instruments, service for online sampling that collects data from the instruments every minute, service to generate email & SMS alerts in case of an exceedance, etc.

1.2 Authorized Use Permission

Usage of this software is limited to its owner via the terms of its development. AirQWeb is wholly owned by Turnkey Instruments Ltd. and may not be updated or amended without their express consent.

1.3 Points of Contact

1.3.1 Information/Help Desk

For additional information and/or support Turnkey Instruments Ltd. can be contacted via email <u>techsupport@turnkey-instruments.com</u> or phone (+44) 1606 812 666.

1.4 Organization of the Manual

Section 2 describes the system architecture of the application including the data flow and the user access levels. Section 3 explains the login/out operations and the main panel of the application. Section 4 gives details on how to use the application with the help of screenshots.

2.0 SYSTEM SUMMARY

2.0 SYSTEM SUMMARY

<u>AirQWeb</u> is a web application that allows you to analyze the data from your instruments on the web. AirQWeb automatically uploads the data from the instruments and saves it in the database and enables you to generate charts such as Table charts, Line charts, Area charts, Polar charts, Gauges and also charts with sliders to analyze the data for a specific time span.

AirQWeb enables you to control your instruments on the web from anywhere in the world. You can start/stop online and offline sampling, change the configuration of the instruments and upload the data manually (although the application automatically uploads the data).

AirQWeb lets you import the data in a particular format, you can export the data from AirQWeb in different formats such as excel, PDF, CSV and with charts as images. You can also generate reports with the data and the chart giving the exceedance limit i.e. any value higher or in between the limits will be highlighted in the report.

AirQWeb also facilitates you to generate 3D graphs that depict the **time of day** <u>vs.</u> value for a selected **date range**. You can also compare the data from two instruments and generate the graphs to analyze the comparison.

AirQWeb also allows you to publish the data from any of your instruments if you want everyone to visualize it. Your instrument will be displayed in the map on the main page of the website. Note: only the data you publish is visible on the main map.



2.1 System Architecture

Figure 2.1

2.2 Data Flows

The above diagram shows how AirQWeb fits within standard enterprise web application architecture. The data flow in the architecture is as follows:

- 1. The browser sends a request for a resource of some kind to the web server.
- 2. The web server decides what to do with the request.
 - a. Static resources such as images, CSS and static web pages are read from disk and returned directly to the browser.
 - b. Requests for dynamic resources (such as a customer login) are forwarded to the application server.
- 3. The application server passes the request to the web application.
- 4. The web application constructs a response using data from the database server when necessary.
- 5. The response is passed back up the chain to the browser.
- 6. The browser displays the response.

2.3 User Access Levels

Users of the application can be categorized into four access levels, a **general user**, a **customer**, **viewer only customer** and a **manager**. A **general user** can only visualize the data that has been published by the customers. General users can also export the data and the graphs. **Customers** are given username and password to access their accounts and control their instruments. **Viewer Only** customer role is a child of a customer role, they are given a username and password to only visualize the data from a customer's instruments but they cannot perform any instrument operations like start/stop sampling etc. **Managers** can add/update/delete users and instruments.

2.4 Contingencies and Alternate Modes of Operation

There are multiple applications running on the background, in case the application server goes down the background applications will stop running. In that case, online sampling feature will not be working and no data will be uploaded to the database hence no alerts will be sent. But the instruments will keep on storing the data in the internal memory and this data will be uploaded automatically after the connection is reestablished. After the server is up, online sampling will start normally.

3.0 GETTING STARTED

3.0 GETTING STARTED

3.1 Register

If you want to use any of the Turnkey instruments with AirQWeb you must create an account on AirQWeb and register the instrument(s) in to your account. Log on to <u>https://www.airqweb.co.uk</u> and click the 'Hello Guest' link at the top right corner of the page and click 'Register Here' in the drop down menu as show in the figure 3.1.



Figure 3.1

This will open the registration form as show in the figure below, enter the details and complete the registration form. Hover over the cursor on (?) next to the text box to get instant help tip for the field.

≡ Register		
User ID:*	Please enter a user ID here	
Password:*		(?)
Confirm Password:*		
Full Name:*		
Email Address:*		
Address:*		
Mobile Phone Number:*		(?)
Office Phone Number:*		(?)
Choose Security Question:*		T
Answer:*		
Note:	Fields marked with (*) are n	nandatory
	l'm not a robot Privacy - Terms	
Cancel		Register

Figure 3.2

Once you have successfully registered on AirQWeb, you will be able to log in to your account on AirQWeb as explained in the following section.

3.2 Logging On

Click 'Hello Guest' link at the top right corner on the page and select 'Log in here' from the drop down menu as shown in figure 3.3.

TE St	🕹 Hello Guest	\odot
	Log in here	
	👃 Register here	

Figure 3.3

Enter the username and password.

Air	QWeb Access
Use	ername:
L	
Pas	ssword:
F	Keep me logged in
	Login
Cor	n't access your account?

Figure 3.4

A successful login will take you to the Main Panel which should look like the following.

AirQWeb	Data Monitoring	🕹 tests 💿
Main Panel	≡ Response	👤 Update Profile
 Visualise Data Comparison 	There is no instrument registered in your account.	Add Instrument Update Instruments
Measure vs Time		A ⁽⁾ Feedback
Auto Export Data		P Log out

Figure 3.5

Since you have no instruments registered to your account, you will see the above message on the screen. You must add at least one instrument. Click on the USER ID at the top right corner of the screen and select Add Instrument from the drop down menu. You will be redirected to the following form

■ Add Instrument			
Instrument Name:*	Osiris	•	
Instrument ID:*	TNO T		
Instrument Type:*	0	۳	
Country:*	Select a country	٣	
City:*	Select a country first	۳]
TimeZone:	Etc/GMT+12	٣	Enable (?)
Location Detail:			
Latitude:			
Longitude:			
Hostname/IP Address:*			
Port Number:*	10001]
Visibility:	Private	٣]
Note:	Fields marked with (*) c	ire m	andatory
Cancel			Add Instrument

Figure 3.6

Enter the details of the instrument and click 'Add Instrument' button at the bottom right corner of the page. AirQWeb will automatically select the time zone depending on the selected location. If you want to store the data for a different time zone then please enable time zone text box and select a time zone to store the data. It is recommended that you enter the latitude and longitude values to show the accurate location on the map. If you do not enter GPS coordinates, AirQWeb will use the default GPS coordinates for the selected city. Please select 'Visibility : Public', if you want to display the data from the instrument on the main page of AirQWeb, otherwise keep it private. It is very important that you enter the correct information to allow the instrument(s) to work with AirQWeb.Once you have successfully added the instrument(s) to your account and collected some data, the Main Panel will look like the following image.



Figure 3.7

The '**Main Panel**' shows the latest available data for the selected instrument in a data table and line charts. All the registered instruments are shown in the list as well as on the map according to the GPS coordinates. The instruments list shows which instruments are sampling online or offline and which have a warning or error. The green button means the instrument is sampling online, a blue button shows that the instrument is sampling offline, a yellow button shows a warning for the instrument and the red button shows either the instrument is out of contact or an error has occurred for the instrument. On the bottom left corner of the page, the messages show the details of loss of contact, online/offline instruments, errors, warnings and the calibration due dates.

There are two tabs on the right hand side of the page. One is for Line Chart and the other is for Table Chart. You can select the instrument from the list/map to visualise the latest data. At the bottom left corner of the graph, there is a checkbox to show the latest data first. At the bottom right corner of the chart there is an option to select the data range. You can select a data range from 1 hour to 7 days of the latest data.

3.3 System Menu

3.3.1 Left Menu

There is a menu list on the left-hand side of each page as shown in figure 3.8

3	Main Panel		
<u>,</u>	Visualise Data		
	Comparison		
*	Measure vs Time		
	Auto Export Data		
	Generate Report		
	Start/Stop Sampling		
0	Email & SMS Alerts		
٩	Upload Data		
Ŷ	Configuration		
ø	Notifications		
8	Additional Features >	\$))	Sound Stats
4	Viewer Only >	쁼	Import Data
	User Guide	8	Alarmbox Settings
		· @ î	Live Video
		30	Site Plans
		<	Data Sharing



This menu contains all the options available in AirQWeb to control your instruments, visualize data from the instruments, configure alerts, watch live video, generate reports, etc. Detailed instructions on how to use these options are covered in <u>section 4</u>.

3.3.2 Profile

This section covers the add/update options of the user and the instruments i.e. **Update Profile, Add Instrument, Update Instrument**, Feedback as highlighted in figure 3.9



Figure 3.9

You can update your account details such as the password, email address, security question, etc. using the **Update Profile** option. **Add Instrument** option allows you to register a new instrument into your account. **Update Instruments** option allows you to update the details of the instruments such as location, GPS Coordinates, IP address, etc. It also allows you to delete the instrument if you want. You can leave your feedback using the feedback option in the menu. Detailed instructions on how to use these options are covered in section 4.14 and 4.15.

3.4 Logout System

You can click **Log out** link in the profile menu at the top right corner of the screen to logout from your account as shown in figure 3.5. This will take you to the main page of the website or you can simply close the browser tab which will end the session.

4.0 USING AIRQWEB

4.0 USING AIRQWEB

4.1 Visualise Data

When you click on Visualise Data option in the left menu as shown in figure 4.1



AirQWeb shows you the list of instruments registered in your account.

4.1.1 Instrument Selection

The instruments are shown in a list as well as on the map. You can select your instrument from either as shown in figure 4.2.

≣ Instrum	ents List			
	ID	Instrument	Location	GPS
Select	T1000	Topas	Trial 1, Warrington	53.389207,-2.615646
Select	V1234	iVibe	Rishads Office,Northwich	53.2667,-2.50000
Select	W0003	WS SoundMeter	Rishad Desk,Northwich	53.2667,-2.50000
Select	O2124	Osiris	Rishad Desk,Northwich	53.2450081,-2.4795782
Instrum	e Ormsk d Issue bool Issue Fast	irk Skeimersdale ID ::T1000 Instrume Location: GPS: 53.3 Select Prescot Huyton Add Huyton Add Speke Runcorn Add Speke Runcorn Add Speke Runcorn Add	nt: Topas Warrington 389207,-2.615646 Warrington tog Warrington tog Appleton M55 Knutsfr	Mage Base Alegan and Alegan Alegan and Alegan and Aleg

Figure 4.2

When you click a pinhead on the map, it opens the info-window which shows the details of the instrument and you can select the instrument from the info window by clicking on the select button. Instruments are shown on the map using GPS coordinates you set, if you do not set the GPS coordinates manually, the application uses the default GPS coordinates for the selected city. After you have selected the instrument, the application asks you to select date and time for which you want to visualise the data.

4.1.2 Select Date/Time

This page lets you to select the dates (to and from) to search the data for the selected instrument from the database. Dates can be selected from the calendar and the time can be selected from the drop-down list as show in figure 4.3

ID	Name	Loca	tion (C	urrent)				GPS
1000	Topas	Trial 1,Warring	on				53.3	38920	7,-2.6
	-Oct-2014 0	10:00 ▼ T()			23:5	a, ,		Se
			0 Su	Mo	Dct Tu	•	201	<u>H</u>	0 Sa
			0			▼ We	201 Th 2	4 Fr 3	0 Sa 4
			0 Su	Мо	Tu 7	•	201	4	0 Sa 4 11
			0 Su 5	Mo 6 13	Tu 7 14	▼ We 1 8 15	201 Th 2 9	4 Fr 3 10 17	0 Sa 4 11

Figure 4.3

After you have selected the date(s) click the <u>Search</u> button. This will take you to the data visualization page where you can analyze the data for the selected dates in a data table and graphs as shown in figure 4.4 - 4.6.

The page shows **Data** on the left-hand side and **Line chart** on the right-hand side.

4.1.3 Data Table

Under the **Data Table** section, you have a table chart with the selected data in it. The data table shows 20 rows per page, at the bottom left corner of the table, there are page-forward and page-back buttons and the buttons with page number to jump to the desired page (as shown in figure 4.4). Clicking on these buttons will perform the paging operation and change the displayed page. You can also sort the table in ascending or descending orders by any column by clicking the title of the column you want to sort. You have 3 buttons named as *Edit Data*, *Export Data* and *Publish Data* (below the data table chart (as shown in figure 4.4). *Export Data* will generate an excel file for the selected data which you can download to your computer. *Publish Data* option will copy the data into public database which will be shown on the map on the main page. *Edit Data* option will be explained in section 4.1.7.

Date Time	Total particles (µg/m³)	PM10 particles (µg/m³)	PM2.5 particles (µg/m³)	PM1 particles (µg/m³)	Wind Speed (mtr/sec)	Wind Direction (degrees)
Jul 25, 2016, 12:15:00 AM	18.7	14.5	5.56	0.88	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 12:30:00 AM	18	13.4	5.06	0.81	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 12:45:00 AM	16.5	11.8	4.62	0.76	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 1:00:00 AM	17.6	12.3	4.54	0.74	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 1:15:00 AM	31.5	18	5	0.88	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 1:30:00 AM	16.5	11.2	3.79	0.66	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 1:45:00 AM	14.6	9.8	3.25	0.52	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 2:00:00 AM	13.6	9.1	2.97	0.47	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 2:15:00 AM	12.6	8.2	2.67	0.41	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 2:30:00 AM	13	8.2	2.49	0.38	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 2:45:00 AM	10.8	7.7	2.46	0.37	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 3:00:00 AM	12.4	8.2	2.38	0.35	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 3:15:00 AM	11	7.2	2.23	0.34	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 3:30:00 AM	10.1	7.1	2.35	0.34	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 3:45:00 AM	11.2	6.9	2.37	0.37	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 4:00:00 AM	11.6	7.7	2.66	0.42	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 4:15:00 AM	11.8	8.7	3.1	0.54	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 4:30:00 AM	12.6	8.3	2.85	0.46	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 4:45:00 AM	11.6	8.4	2.97	0.49	0	350
Jul 25, 2016, 5:00:00 AM	14	8.6	2.92	0.49	0	350
• 1 2 3						
Edit Data		Exp	ort Data		Unpublish D)ata

Figure 4.4

4.1.4 Data Graph



The Data Graph section shows a line chart with all the channels in it.

Figure 4.5

Figure 4.5 shows the line chart for all the data with multiple vertical axes. The values are plot against date/Time on the horizontal axis. The chart is dynamic and very interactive, you can select/deselect values to show/hide on the chart by clicking on the Parameter name. Zoom in on a chart to examine an interesting part of the data more closely by click + hold + drag. Export the chart to PNG, JPG, PDF or SVG format, or print the chart directly from the web page.

4.1.5 Polar & Windrose Charts

Polar Charts are the plot for dust particle measures against the wind Direction. This shows what the wind direction was when the particular level of particulates was measured. 'Average polar' chart shows the average values of the particulates for each wind direction. Polar charts and wind rose chart are shown in figure 4.6



Figure 4.5

4.1.6 Edit Data

Edit Data option allows you to change or delete the data values manually. In case there is a value which does not seem to be correct, you can use this option to edit or delete the value by yourself. Clicking <u>Edit</u> <u>Data</u> button will display the edit data page as shown in figure 4.7

≡ Edit Data											
	Date Time ⊾	Total particles (μg/m³)	PM10 particles (µg/m³)	PM2.5 particles (µg/m³)	РМ1 particles (µg/m³)	Temperature (Celsius)	Humidity (%RH)	Wind Speed (mtr/sec)	Wind Direction (degrees)	Comments	
1 💉 🗊 X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:00:00 AM	10.55	8.2	4.52	1.38	0	0	0	345		
2 🖉 🗊 X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:05:00 AM	9	7.1	4.15	1.24	0	0	0	345		
3 🧪 间 🗴	Oct 13, 2014, 12:10:00 AM	9.8	7	4.25	1.3	0	0	0	345		
4 💉 🗊 X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:15:00 AM	10.5	8.1	4.17	1.25	0	0	0	345		
5 💉 🗊 X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:20:00 AM	10	7.5	4.2	1.29	0	0	0	345		
6 🧪 🗊 🗶	Oct 13, 2014, 12:25:00 AM	10.2	7.1	4.23	1.26	0	0	0	345		
7 💉 🗊 X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:30:00 AM	10.3	7.5	4.09	1.21	0	0	0	345		
8 🛹 🗊 X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:35:00 AM	9.7	7.6	4.15	1.25	0	0	0	345		

Figure 4.7

This page contains a data table with three buttons on the left for each row named as <u>Edit</u>, <u>Delete</u>, <u>Set to</u> <u>Avg</u>. This data table shows 20 rows per page. You can always navigate to other pages and sort the table by any column. <u>Set to Avg</u> button sets the whole row to the average values of the selected data. <u>Edit</u> button allows you to edit the values manually as shown in the figure 4.8

	Edit	t Dat	ta										
				Date Time	Total particles (µg/m³)	РМ10 particles (µg/m³)	PM2.5 particles (µg/m³)	PM1 particles (µg/m³)	Temperature (Celsius)	Humidity (%RH)	Wind Speed (mtr/sec)	Wind Direction (degrees)	Comments
1	1	Û	x	Oct 13, 2014, 12:00:00 AM	10.55	8.2	4.52	1.38	0	0	0	345	
2	<u>/</u>	Û	X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:05:00 AM	9	7.1	4.15	1.24	0	0	0	345	
3	₽>	Û	x	Oct 13, 2014, 12:10:00 AM	9.8	7	4.25	1.3	0	0	0	345	this is a test comment
4	/	Û	X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:15:00 AM	10.5	8.1	4.17	1.25	0	0	0	345	
5	<u>/</u>	Û	X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:20:00 AM	10	7.5	4.2	1.29	0	0	0	345	
6	1	Û	X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:25:00 AM	10.2	7.1	4.23	1.26	0	0	0	345	
7	/	Û	X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:30:00 AM	10.3	7.5	4.09	1.21	0	0	0	345	
8	/	Û	X	Oct 13, 2014, 12:35:00 AM	9.7	7.6	4.15	1.25	0	0	0	345	

Figure 4.8

You can enter any numeric value in the text area for the channels and you can also add a comment for every edited row to show the comments in the reports. For instance, if there is a spike in the data due to the weather conditions you can add a comment (i.e. false values due to weather conditions) to that spike. Click the <u>Save</u> button (highlighted in the figure 4.8) to update the values in the database. Remember all the edited values will be highlighted in the table next time you view them. When you click the <u>Delete</u> button it asks you to confirm if you want to delete the sample, when you click OK the whole row is deleted from the database.

4.2 Instrument Comparison

When you click on the instrument comparison option in the left menu list as shown in the figure 4.9,



Figure 4.9

You will be directed to a page where you can select two instruments and the date and time for the selected instruments to compare the data as shown in the figure 4.10.

	ID	Name	Location	GPS	Select	t Date & Til	me		
1	T1000	Topas	Trial 1, Warrington	53.389207,-2.615646	-	Click here	00:00	•	
1	T1409	Topas	Trial 2, Warrington	53.38919,-2.615622	From		1 00.00		
					То	Click here	23:59	Ŧ	
						[Compar	e	
1	Instrum	ents on <mark>M</mark> ap							
					Skel	mersdale	Wigan	Westhough	ton Farnworth
_					>	M58	yvigan	Medinodigin	Fairmortin
Ma	ap Satellit	•		MISE MISE		n h l	wigan		

Figure 4.10

The page shows the instrument list with the checkboxes on the left-hand side. You can select two instruments for comparison. You can also see the instruments on the map. Select the date from the calendar and time from the drop-down menu and click on the <u>Compare</u> button to compare the data from the selected instruments. This will take you to the comparison page where you can visualize the comparison data on the line charts as shown in figure 4.11



Figure 4.11

On top of the comparison page, you can see the details of the selected instruments. The comparison is performed for each channel and displayed in the line chart.

4.3 Measure vs. Time

When you on click the Measure vs. Time icon in the control panel as shown in the figure 4.12



Figure 4.12

You will see the instruments selection page which allows you to select an instrument, a channel, date range and a time interval to plot a 3D graph of the selected channel as shown in the figure 4.13.

	ID	Instrument	Location	GPS	Select a value to visualise against Time of Day Total
select	T1000	Topas	Trial 1,Warrington	53.389207,-2.615646	, <u> </u>
select	T1409	Topas	Trial 2, Warrington	53.38919,-2.615622	Select Dates & Interval (select multiple days for better graph)
Select	CM3-5009	Vibrosound CM3	Andys office,Northwich	53.244783,-2.479225	
Select	CM3-52265	CM3 Virtual	Nicks Office,Northwich	53.2667,-2.50000	From Click here To Click here
Select	TNO2265	Osiris	Northwich	53.2667,-2.50000	Interval: 10 Minut T Draw Graph
Select	TNO3154	Osiris	Warrington	53.3833,-2.60000	
Select	TNO3500	Osiris master ref	Warrington	53.3833,-2.60000	
Select	TNO8888	Osiris	Pump test (new batch),Northwich	53.2667,-2.50000	
Instru	uments on Mo	ap			
Map Sa	tellite		Libertard	M58 M6	Wigan - Westhoughton Frankorth Ho - Leich Leich In Makerfield Leich Starbridge

Figure 4.13

You can select an instrument from the table; when you click the <u>Select</u> button it shows you the input boxes to select channels and the date range. Clicking the <u>Draw graph</u> button as shown in figure 4.13 will generate 3D graph and a magic table as shown in figure 4.14 and 4.15



Figure 4.14



Figure 4.15 (a)

																	_
1	0.38	10.92	10.3	10.35	10.28	12.75	11.62	14.85	20.18	20.5	21.62	21.18	20.67	22.97	21.72	19.97	Â
1	1.57	8.92	6.75	6.13	4.15	4.23	4.4	5.15	4.15	2.18	1.83	2.73	3.07	5.87	5.68	3.48	
1	12.1	13.65	14.08	12.65	13.47	14.53	13.73	13.88	13.05	14.5	15.05	14.73	17.2	17.38	57.7	28.22	I
e	6.23	6.3	6.25	7.22	7.07	7.35	6.2	5.97	6.07	6.6	7.02	8.42	9.63	6.4	4.7	11.58	
1	9.08	17.33	18.85	18.27	19.42	21.8	17.43	20.98	23.52	23.83	25.62	24.95	23.17	27.22	29.77	28.63	
1	0.93	10.97	10.57	11.73	10.77	10.42	10.73	11.57	12.58	14.02	14.5	15.95	22.33	21.72	21.63	18.18	
1	4.08	14.42	14.07	14.55	14	13.43	13.03	14.93	18.92	17.65	19.15	22.75	25.88	20.63	19.1	34.3	
1	8.13	16.38	16.17	18.05	17.52	17.58	19.43	19.67	25.25	25.85	51.35	54.18	58.63	48.82	38.05	32.78	
2	0.22	28.62	34.52	60.67	49.22	71.85	86.27	86.3	40.2	94.5	56.38	88.55	47.95	61.87	78.6	41.6	
6.4	3.53	3.82	3.75	3.92	4.72	4.55	5.62	6.17	6.98	10.92	5.48	6.17	14.85	5.48	6.45	5.67	
	7.57	7.23	9.48 III	12.57	12.25	13.85	16.67	15.38	16.42	17.18	15	13.1	9.93	12.45	11.62	11.4	Ŧ
							Fis	sheye 🗖	Bar fil								

Figure 4.15 (b)

Figure 4.14 shows a 3D graph where one axis is for date and the other is for the time of the day, the vertical axis shows the values of the selected channel. In the above example, PM10 was selected with 30 minutes interval. On mouse hover, the graph displays the values of that point. You can change the view of the graph and also you can scale the graph by holding the shift key and dragging the mouse on the graph.

Figures 4.15 (a) and (b) show the magic table for the same values. You can change the view of the table by checking/unchecking the *Fisheye* and *Bar fill* checkboxes.

4.4 Auto Export Data

This option allows you to setup configurations to export the data and send it to the email address (es) automatically. When you click this option in the left menu it shows the list of the instruments after you select the instrument it shows you the options to setup auto data export as shown in the figure below.

Auto Export Data	
Email Address(es): (Separated by comma ",")	emailaddress@gmail.com
Duration of the data:*	Weekly •
Day of Week:	Monday <
Time of Email:*	00:00 ▼
Format of Data:*	CSV •
Channels:*	 Total particles PM10 particles PM2.5 particles PM1 particles Temperature Humidity Wind Speed Wind Direction
Setup another Export Data Confi	ig
Cancel	Start Auto Data Expor

Figure 4.16

You can enter multiple email addresses separated by comma, select the duration of the data (i.e. Daily, Weekly, Monthly), select the day of the week (if weekly data), select the time of email, select the format of the data (i.e. PDF, Excel or CSV) and you can also select the channels you want to include in the exported file. The application allows you to setup up to 3 different configurations, for instance, you want daily data as well as weekly data as well as monthly or if you want data in all three different formats, you can select 3 different configurations.

4.5 Generate Report

Generate report option enables you to generate reports for the data from the instruments. When you click the option in the left menu as shown in the figure 4.17



Figure 4.17

The application asks you to select an instrument as discussed in section 4.1.1 and then you can select the date(s) as discussed in section 4.1.2. After you have selected the dates for the report, the application asks you to select the channels you want to include in your report and their exceedance limits as shown in figure 4.18.

🗆 Report Generato	r		
Please select the Me	asures you want t	o inclu	de in your report and set their Exceedences.
	Measures	Exce	edence Limit
	▼ TSP	50	µg/m³
		50	µg/m³
		50	µg/m³
	PM ₁	50	µg/m³
	🔲 Temperature	100	°C
	🔲 Humidity	100	%RH
	Wind Speed	100	mtr/sec
	🔲 Wind Directio	n 0	▼ °&& 45 ▼ °
Back			Generate Report

Figure 4.18

You can check/uncheck the channels you want to include in you report and set their exceedance limits. If the value is greater than exceedance limit it will be highlighted in the report. Click the <u>Generate Report</u> button to generate a report in PDF or MS Excel format.

4.6 Start/Stop Sampling

When you click the Start/Stop Sampling option in the left menu as shown in the figure below



Figure 4.19

You will be shown a list of your instruments. You can select any instrument as discussed in section 4.1.1. After that, it displays start/stop sampling options as shown in figure 4.20.

≣ Instru	≡ Instrument Information						
ID	ID Name Location GPS Coordinates						
T1000	Topas	Trial 1,Warrington	53.3892	07,-2.615646			
Instru		ready samp ar Memory	ling online. ?) 🖌				
Start (Start Offline Sampling Stop Sampling Start Online Sampling						



If the instrument is already sampling online or offline, the application shows the message on top of the page and a <u>Stop Sampling</u> button as well. You can start <u>Offline Sampling</u> or <u>Online Sampling</u>. There is also an option to 'Auto Clear memory', by default this option is enabled, if you do not want to clear the memory automatically you can uncheck this option. Starting offline sampling will stop online sampling.

4.7 Email & SMS Alerts

This option allows you to setup alarm configuration for the online sampling instrument. When you click this option in the left menu as shown in the figure below



Figure 4.21

You will be asked to select the instrument you want to setup the configurations for. Instruments can be selected as discussed in section 4.1.1. After you have selected the instrument, it shows you the alarm configuration wizard with four tabs as shown in figure 4.22

Trigger level Settings Email & SMS Settings Com	parison Settings Other Settings
Time Based Conditions 1	
Days	€Monday €Tuesday €Wednesday €Thursday €Friday €Saturday €Sunday
Time for Alerts	BETWEEN 00:0(▼ AND 24:0(▼
	200 µg/m ³ Add more
PM₁₀ trigger level	150 µg/m ³ Add more
PM _{2.5} trigger level	100 µg/m ³ Add more
□ PM1 trigger level	µg/m³ Add more
Temperature trigger level	Celsius Add more
Humidity trigger level	% RH Add more
☑ Wind Speed trigger level	20 mtr/sec Add more
Wind Direction Between (?)	 && Add more
OR	
Wind Direction Condition (?)	°
Generate alarm only when all the above conditions are me	t. (?)
Cancel	Next

Figure 4.22

The first tab allows you to setup up to 3 conditions for the alerts. You can select multiple days and the hours of the day for the alerts. For instance, if you want alerts only Monday to Friday between 8 AM and 2 PM. You can set the trigger levels for the channels for which you want to generate the exceedance alarms. Multiple alert levels can be set i.e. Level 1 and level 2. If you want to generate alerts only when all the selected channels exceed the trigger values, you can check 'Generate alarm only when all the above conditions are met' option, leave this option unchecked if you want to generate alerts when any of the selected channel value exceeds the trigger value you have set. After you have finished setting up these conditions you can click the <u>Next</u> button which will take you to the Email & SMS Settings tab as shown in the figure 4.23.

Trigger level Settings	Email & SMS Settings	Comparison Settings	Other	Settings
Enable Exceedence SMS	S Alerts (?)			
Mobile Number(s): (eg. 07812345678, s	Separated by comma ",	")		
🗷 Enable Exceedence Ema	ail Alerts (?)	Instant SMS Alerts	OR	Time(Daily) 00:00 T
Email Address(es): (Separated by comm	ia ",")	rishad.ali@turnke	y-instru	
Enable Loss of Contact	SMS Alert	🗷 Instant Email Alerts	OR	Time(Daily) 00:00 🔻
Mobile Number(s): (eg. 07812345678, 9	Separated by comma ",	")		
Enable Loss of Contact	Email Alert	🔲 Instant SMS Alert (?)	OR	Time of Day 00:00 ▼ (?)
Email Address(es): (Separated by comm	ia ",")	rishad.ali@turnke	y-instru	
🗆 Enable Daily Summary	SMS	🔲 Instant Email Alert (?)) OR	Time of Day 00:00 🔻 (?)
Phone Number(s): (eg. 07812345678)		07832945149		Time 11:00 T
🗷 Enable Daily Summary	Email	Same as above		
Email Address(es): (Separated by comm	ia ",")	rishad.ali@turnke	y-instru	Time 16:00 •
		Same as above		
Email Format		HTML T		
Custom Logo URL				
Contact Details (?)				
Previous				Next

Figure 4.23

Here you can set SMS and email contact details and the conditions to generate the alerts. If you want to receive the email or SMS alerts as soon as the values exceed the trigger levels you have set in the

previous tab, you can check the 'Instant alert' option or if you do not want instant alerts you can select a time of the day from the drop down list to generate one email with all the notifications. You can select different email formats, HTML if you want to get emails in proper format with images and logos or plain text otherwise. If you want to include a logo of your company in the email alerts, you can enter the URL for the image logo. You can also enter the contact details of the concerned person in case of an exceedance to be included at the bottom of the email alerts. Once you are done setting up the contact details click the <u>Next</u> button to go to the Comparison Settings tab as shown in the figure below.

Trigger level Settings Email & SMS Settings Comparison Settings Other Settings
Comparison with T1409
□ Alert if T1000's TSP value is µg/m³ higher than T1409's TSP value.
□ Alert if T1000's PM ₁₀ value is µg/m³ higher than T1409's PM ₁₀ value.
□ Alert if T1000's PM_{2.5} value is µg/m³ higher than T1409's PM _{2.5} value.
Alert if T1000's Wind Speed value is mtr/sec higher than T1409's Wind Speed value.
Alert if T1000's Wind Direction value is lower/higher than T1409's Wind Direction value.
Generate alert if all of the above conditions are met and T1000's Wind Direction value is between * AND *.
Previous Next

Figure 4.24

This tab allows you to setup the comparison alerts. For example, if you want to generate alerts if the channel 1 value of instrument ABC is x units greater than the channel 1 value of instrument XYZ, you can select the instrument by ticking the checkbox and set the values. If you do not want to compare instruments then just click next to go to the Other Settings tab as shown in figure 4.25.

Trigger level Settings	Email & SMS Settings	Comparison Settings Other	Settings
E	nable Auto Clear M	emory (?) 💌	
S	how Inlet heating s	tatus (?) 🕑	
Previous		Save Configuration	on

Figure 4.25

This tab gives you a checkbox for Display Reading Alerts. If the instrument is sampling with 15-minute storage interval but instrument's screen refresh time is 10 seconds and you want to get the alerts for the screen refresh values, you can check this option. Remember, the data will be stored according to the storage interval (i.e. 15 Minute in this example). After you have finished setting up, click the <u>Save</u>

<u>Configuration</u> button to save the alert configurations and start SMS and email alerts. The application shows you a confirmation message if the configuration is saved into the database successfully as shown in the figure below, otherwise, an error message will be displayed.

Email & SMS alert settings have been updated successfully.

Figure 4.26

4.7.1 Email & SMS Alerts For Sound

If you have a sound meter attached to the dust monitoring instrument to monitor the sound pollution, you can configure AirQWeb to generate alerts based on Equivalent Continuous Sound Pressure Level (L_{eq}) or different Percentile levels (L_1 to L_{99}) for different time intervals. To Setup sound alerts, click on Email & SMS Alerts option in the left menu then select an instrument as described in the previous section.

Trigger level Settings Email & SMS Sett	ings Comparison Settings Other Settings
Time Based Conditions	1
Days	♥Monday ♥Tuesday ♥Wednesday ♥Thursday ♥Friday ■Saturday ■Sunday
Time for Alerts	BETWEEN 00:0(• AND 24:0(•
🔲 TSP trigger level	µg/m³ Add more
🔲 PM ₁₀ trigger level	µg/m³ Add more
■ PM _{2.5} trigger level	µg/m³ Add more
🔲 PM1 trigger level	µg/m³ Add more
🗑 Sound Meter 1 trigger level	70 dB Add more
	Alerts for L50 V Interval 2 Hour V
🗷 Sound Meter 2 trigger level	75 dB Add more
	Alerts for Leg 🔻 Interval 1 Hour 🔻
🔲 Wind Speed trigger level	mtr/sec Add more
Wind Direction Between (?)	• && • Add more
OR	
Wind Direction Condition (?)	°
Generate alarm only when all the above conditions are met. (?)	
Cancel	Next

Figure 4.27

As shown in figure 4.27, you can set 'Sound Meter 1 trigger level' (i.e. 70 dB in this case), select 'Alerts for' from the drop-down list (L_{50}) and the interval (2 Hours). For each new data sample, AirQWeb will calculate L_{50} for 2 hours and generate an alert if the value of L_{50} is greater than 70 dB. AirQWeb allows you to configure sound alerts for L_{eq} , L_1 , L_5 , L_{10} , L_{25} , L_{50} , L_{75} , L_{90} , L_{99} for an interval of 15 Minute, 30 Minute, 1 Hour, 2 Hour, 8 Hour, 12 Hour, 24 Hour.
4.8 Upload Data

Although the application uploads the data into the database automatically every 6 hours but this option enables you to upload the available samples from the memory of the instruments into the database manually. When you click the Upload Data option in the left menu, the application asks you to select an instrument from the list as discussed in section 4.1.1, after that the application shows you the available samples in the memory of the selected instrument as shown in figure 4.28.

The selected instrument contains "4" samples in the mem	iory.
Please press the upload button to upload data into the de Check if you want to clear instrument's memory after u	
Cancel	Upload

Figure 4.28

You can select the check box if you want to clear the instrument's memory after uploading the data. Click <u>Upload</u> button to upload the data into the database.

4.9 Configuration

This option shows you the current configuration of the selected instrument and enables you to change it. When you click the Configuration option in the left menu, you will be asked to select an instrument as discussed in section 4.1.1. Then you will be displayed the configuration of the selected instrument as shown in figure 4.29 (a) and 4.29 (b).

Measures & Units	Other Options
Measure Unit	Mass Calibration
	Factors
. TSP μg/m³ ▼	Total Particles
✓ PM ₁₀ μg/m ³ ▼	
	■ PM ₁₀ Particles
✓ PM _{2.5} μg/m³ ▼	
✓ PM₁ µg/m³ ▼	PM _{2.5} Particles ✓ New Sample Daily
Temperature Celcius 💌	PM ₁ Particles
Humidity %RH 💌	Auto Reset
	Storage Interval: ⁵ minute(s)
✓ Wind Speed meter/sec ▼	Alarm Trigger: ^{10.0} µg/m³
Wind Direction degrees 🔻	Instrument Location: TNT1000
Figure 4.29 (a)	Figure 4.29(b)

The configuration page contains two tabs named as **Measure & Units** and **Other Options**. If the instrument is sampling, you are not allowed to change the configuration so you will have to stop sampling first. The application shows a message on top of the page and a <u>Stop Sampling</u> button to stop the instrument for sampling at the bottom right of the page. When you stop the instrument you will be allowed to change the configuration of the instrument. The figures above show the options to select the channels and their units and other configurations of the instrument that can be changed. When you are done changing the configuration, click the <u>Apply</u> button to update the configuration of the instrument. The application shows a confirmation message after it finishes the update operation as shown in the figure below.

Successfully updated Date and Time
Successfully updated flags
Successfully updated the location
Successfully updated the Storage Interval
Successfully updated the Alarm trigger and Mass calibration factors
Successfully Loaded new Settings

Figure 4.30

4.10 Notifications

Click the 'Notifications' option in the left menu, to see the latest notifications in the table charts as shown in the figures below.

■ Notifications								
Trigger Notifications	Trigger Notifications Comparison Notifications Loss of Contact Notifications							
Instrument ID	Instrument ID Message							
T1409	Total particles value was 2 PM10 particles value was	08:55, 08-Oct-2014						
T1409	Total particles value was 2	08:41, 08-Oct-2014						
T1409	Total particles value was 4 PM10 particles value was PM2.5 particles value was	10:06, 07-Oct-2014						
T1409	Total particles value was 3 PM10 particles value was	09:46, 07-Oct-2014						
T1409	Total particles value was 201.1 ug/m^3 at 07:55,07-Oct 07:56, 07-Oct-201							
T1000	Total particles value was 2	10.1 ug/m^3 at 08:05,16-May	08:05, 16-May-2014					

Figure 4.31

Trigger Notifications Comparison Notifications Loss of Contact Notifications							
Instruments Message Date Time							
TNT1000 vs TNT1409 TN1	1000 read PM10 value 2ug/m^3 higher than TNT1409 at 09:00,25	-Mar 09:00, 25-Mar-2014					
■ Notifications	;						
■ Notifications Trigger Notifications	Comparison Notifications Loss of Contact Noti	fications					
		fications Date Time					
Trigger Notifications	Comparison Notifications Loss of Contact Noti						

Figure 4.33

Trigger notifications tab shows the latest exceedance notification from all the instruments registered on your account. Similarly comparison and loss of contact notification show notifications from all the registered instruments sorted by date time in descending order.

4.11 Additional Features

The are some advanced features in AirQWeb which can be very useful but are not very popular hence they have been put in a sub menu under 'Additional Feature'. Hover over the mouse to open the sub menu of addition features as shown in the figure 4.34

4.11.1 Sound Stats

When you click the Sound Stats option in the sub menu of Additional Features as shown in the figure 4.34



Figure 4.34

AirQWeb shows you the list of your instruments where you can select an instrument as described in 4.1.1, then you will be asked to select the dates and interval for which you want the sound statistics.

4.11.1.1 Sound Date/Time Selection

This page allows you to select the date and time for the sound data and the interval to generate the sound stats as shown in figure 4.35

Instrum	ent Information										
ID	Name		Loca	tion (Curre	nt)				GPS (Current)	
TNO2966	Osiris	Northwi	ch					5	53.266	7,-2.50000	
≡ Select D											
From 01-Oct-	2014 00:00		13-Oct	:-2014		23:5	9 . 201		Inter	Val 1 Hour 1 Hour 2 Hour 4 Hour	Search
			13-Oct	:-2014 C	Dct	23:5		4		1 Hour 2 Hour 4 Hour 8 Hour 12 Hour	Search
			13-Oct	:-2014 C	Dct	23:5	201	4	0	2 Hour 4 Hour 8 Hour	Search
			13-Oct	:-2014 C	Dct	23:5: • We	201 Th	4 Fr	0 Sa	1 Hour 2 Hour 4 Hour 8 Hour 12 Hour	Search
			13-Oct	-2014 C Mo	Dct Tu	23:5: V We	201 Th 2	4 Fr 3 10	0 Sa 4	1 Hour 2 Hour 4 Hour 8 Hour 12 Hour	Search
			13-Oct 0 Su 5	-2014 C Mo 6	Dct Tu	23:5 • We 1 8	201 Th 2 9 16	4 Fr 3 10 17	Sa 4 11	1 Hour 2 Hour 4 Hour 8 Hour 12 Hour	Search

Figure 4.35

After you have selected the date, time and the interval value for the sound statistics, click the <u>Search</u> button to collect the sound data from the database and calculate the average values. If the sound data is not available an error message will be displayed that 'There is no sound data available. Please select other dates.'

4.11.1.2 Sound Statistics

If the data is available the application shows the sound statistics as shown in the figure below.

DateTime	L _{eq}	L _{min}	L	L ₅	L 10	L 25	L 50	L 75	L 90	L 99	L _{max}
13-Oct-2014 08:00	66.73	66.6	66.8	66.8	66.8	66.8	66.75	66.65	66.6	66.6	66.8
13-Oct-2014 09:00	81.9	67.0	82.5	82.5	82.5	77.15	70.9	68.5	67.0	67.0	82.5
13-Oct-2014 10:00	85.0	69.8	85.6	85.6	85.6	82.1	75.4	71.0	69.8	69.8	85.6
13-Oct-2014 11:00	67.84	66.5	68.4	68.4	68.4	67.85	66.95	66.55	66.5	66.5	68.4
13-Oct-2014 12:00	66.05	65.7	66.4	66.4	66.4	66.15	65.85	65.75	65.7	65.7	66.4
13-Oct-2014 13:00	71.7	65.5	72.3	72.3	72.3	69.05	65.65	65.5	65.5	65.5	72.3
13-Oct-2014 14:00	65.25	65.2	65.3	65.3	65.3	65.3	65.25	65.2	65.2	65.2	65.3
13-Oct-2014 15:00	65.3	65.3	65.3	65.3	65.3	65.3	65.3	65.3	65.3	65.3	65.3

Figure 4.36

For each sound meter, it calculates L_{eq} , L_{min} , L_1 , L_5 , L_{10} , L_{25} , L_{50} , L_{75} , L_{90} , L_{99} and L_{max} from the sound data for the selected interval and shows these values in the data table. It also plots a line chart for the sound data and $L_{eq}/L_{10}/L_{50}/L_{90}$ (you can select the radio button to plot any of these values on the graph) against the timestamp as shown in the figure below.



Figure 4.37

4.11.2 Import Data

Import Data function allows you to import the data manually for any instrument in a particular format. When you click the Import Data option in the left menu under the Additional Features menu as shown in figure 4.38



Figure 4.38

The application shows you the instrument list where you can select an instrument which you want to import data for as shown in figure 4.39



Figure 4.39

You can select an instrument as discussed in section 4.1.1. When you have selected an instrument, the application displays the import data page as shown in figure 4.40.

Import Data												
aste the d	ata	in tl	ne te	ext c	are	a	yc	ou wan	t to	o import.		
<u>xample)</u>												
imeStamp	Total	Particl	es (ug/	(<u>m</u> ^3)	PM	110	par	ticles (ug/m	į^3)	<u>PM2.5</u> particles (L	1g/m^3)	PM1 particles (ug/m^3)
emperature (Cels	ius) H	lumidi	ty (%R	H) W	ind	Spe	ed	(mtr/sec)	Wind	Heading (degrees)		
7/09/2012 00:05				2.03	0	0	0	300				
7/09/2012 00:10				2.12	0	0	0	300				
7/09/2012 00:15				2.26			0	300				
7/09/2012 00:20				2.37	0	0	0	300				
7/09/2012 00:25				2.33	0	0	0	300				
7/09/2012 00:30	52.9	24.2	6.91	2.44	0	0	0	300				
7/09/2012 00:35								300				
7/09/2012 00:40	60.5	26.2	7.41	2.70	0	0	0	300				
Cancel												Import Data

Figure 4.40

The application accepts only two formats which you can import the data in. The accepted formats are displayed when you take the mouse cursor over the *Example* label as shown in figure 4.40. Copy the data you want to import and paste it into the text area available on the page. After you have finished pasting the data into the text area, click the *Import Data* button to upload the data into the database for the selected instrument. The application displays a confirmation message when the data has been uploaded into the database as shown in figure 4.41.

Response

The data has been successfully uploaded into the database.

Figure 4.41

An error message is displayed if the format of the data is incorrect. You can go back using the browser's back button to import the data again.

4.11.3 Live Video

This option allows you to see the live video from the instrument if the IP camera is attached to the instrument's web server. When you click 'Live Video' option in the left menu, you are asked to select the instrument you want the video for. Select the instrument as discussed in section 4.1.1, then you will see the live video from the IP camera connected to the instrument as shown in figure 4.42.



Figure 4.42

4.11.4 3D Site Plans

Here you can see the 3D view of your site(s) on the map. These 3D models are built by our engineers and uploaded on the map to display the accurate location of the instruments on the site. These models can also be imported to Google Earth. On the top left corner of the model, click the link 'View in Google Earth' to download the KML file to view the models in Google Earth.



Figure 4.43

4.11.5 Data Sharing

AirQWeb allows you to share your data with other AirQWeb users. You can share your instruments with multiple users. When you share your instruments with others, they cannot control your instruments neither they can make any changes to your data. They can visualise the data from shared instruments, generated reports and compare data. They can also setup Email & SMS alerts on the shared data but these alerts are independent of main alert configurations. Click Data Sharing option to control data sharing as shown in figure 4.44



Figure 4.44

This will show you the data sharing page where you can manage your shared instruments, accept or reject others request to share data or request others to share their data as shown in figure 4.45

🧏 M	ly Shared	d Data			<u>\$</u>	Other's !	Shared Instruments			
Selec	t which i	instruments you	want to share the date	ı from.	Here	e, you c	an select which instrur	ments you want	to show in your account.	
	ID	Location	Owner ID	event		ID	Location	Owner ID	event	
	T1000	Trial 1,Warrington	test2	They requested, you accepted.		O2124	Rishad Desk,Northwich	test2	They requested, waiting for your approval.	
	T1409	Trial 2, Warrington	test2	test2 They requested, you accepted.					Update Data Sharing	
				Update My Shared Instruments					opolic build mining	
🧟 S	hare My	Data			🕌 Send Request to Share Data					
Pleas	se enter l	JserID :			Plea	ise ente	r User's ID here : test2			
and s	select ins	struments from	the list below to share t	he data.	to re	equest t	hem to share data from	m their instrum	ents.	
		ID	Location	GPS					Send Request	
	T1000	Tria	1,Warrington	53.389207,-2.615646						
	T1409	Tria	2,Warrington	53.38919,-2.615622						
	TNO2	183 Nor	hwich	53.2667,-2.50000						
	TNO3	TNO3154 Warrington 53.3833,-2.60000								
	TNO3	369 Lon	don	51.500278,-0.128950						
				Share My Data						

Figure 4.45

My Shared Data: Here you can control which instruments you want to share with others.

Others Shared Data: Here you can select which instruments of others you want to show in your account. Share My Data: Here you can send a request to other users to share your instruments with them. Send Request: Here you can send a request to another user to share their data with you.

4.12 Viewer Only

If you want to create a child account to share your data with limited access, you can create multiple 'Viewer Only' accounts and add any number of instruments to the viewer accounts to allow them to only visualise the data. There are 4 options in the sub menu of the View Only menu as show in the figure below

8	Additional Features >		
4	Viewer Only >	4	Add Account
	User Guide	*	Remove Account
			Add Instrument
			Remove Instrument

Figure 4.46

4.12.1 Add Account (Viewer Only)

Select this option to create a viewer only account. Enter the details in the form as shown below and click 'Create Account' button to add a viewer only account. After the account has been created successfully add your instruments to share the data as described in section 4.12.3 and provide the login details to the Viewer account holder.

■ Add Viewer Account		
User ID:*		
Password:*		(?)
Confirm Password:*		
Full Name:*		
Email Address:*		
Address:*		
Mobile Phone Number:*		(?)
Office Phone Number:*		(?)
Choose Security Question:*	T	
Answer:*		
Note: F	Fields marked with (*) are mo	andatory
Cancel		Create Account

Figure 4.47

4.12.2 Remove Account (Viewer Only)

If you wish to delete a Viewer Account, select this option. This will display a list of Viewer Account under your account, select the account from the table as shown in the figure below and confirm to delete the account.

	■ Viewer Account List									
Select	a viewe	r accour	nt from the list to delete.							
	User ID	Name	Address							
Select	hnu	Pavvo	Paavo Pudas HNU-Nordion Ltd.Oy PL 1 (Atomitie 5 B 6) 00371 Helsinki Finland							
Select	testviewer	Test Viewer	Gadbrook Business Centre							
	Select testviewer Test Viewer Gadbrook Business Centre Delete Viewer Account Confirmation Are you sure you want to delete testviewer's account? OK Cancel									

Figure 4.48

Viewer Only account will only be able to visualise the data, generate reports and view the notifications. With the limited access they cannot add/update/delete instruments of change configuration or control the instruments.

4.12.3 Add Instrument (Viewer Only)

Once a Viewer Account has been created, you must add at least one instrument to the account to share the data from the instrument. Selecting this option will display a list of registered Viewer Accounts under your account. Select the desired Account from the list which will display the list of all your instruments. Select any number of instruments from the Instrument List by ticking the check boxes next to the instrument IDs and click 'Add Viewer Instruments' button as show in the figure below

Select instruments to add to the viewer only user.						
	ID	Name	Туре	Location	GPS	
	CM3-52265	CM3 Virtual	CM3	Northwich	53.2667,-2.50000	
	T1000	Topas	Т	Warrington	53.389207,-2.615646	
	T1409	Topas	Т	Warrington	53.38919,-2.615622	
	TNO2265	Osiris	0	Northwich	53.2667,-2.50000	
	TNO3154	Osiris	0	Warrington	53.3833,-2.60000	
	TNO3500	Osiris master ref	0	Warrington	53.3833,-2.60000	
	TNO8888	Osiris	0	Northwich	53.2667,-2.50000	

Figure 4.49

4.12.4 Remove Instrument (Viewer Only)

If you want to remove an instrument from a Viewer account, you can use this option. Select the User ID from the Viewer Account List then select the instrument(s) from the list of instrument(s) you have already added to the viewer account and click 'Remove Viewer Instruments' to remove the selected instruments from the selected viewer account as shown in the figure below

Select instruments to remove from the viewer account.						
	ID	Name	Туре	Location	GPS	
	T1000	Topas	Т	Warrington	53.389207,-2.615646	
	T1409	Topas	Т	Warrington	53.38919,-2.615622	

Figure 4.50

4.13 Update Profile

Update Account option allows you to change your account details such as name, address, contact details etc. When you click the option as shown in figure 4.51

fB	
Instrument is sampling or	👤 Update Profile
	Update Instruments
Instrument is sampling of	Log out

Figure 4.51

The application shows you the update account page where you can change the details as shown in figure 4.52.

■ Update Account Details					
User ID:*	test				
Password:*					
Confirm Password:*					
Full Name:*	Test				
Email Address:*	rishad.ali@turnkey-instrument				
Address:*	Northwich				
Mobile Phone Number:*	07894561231				
Office Phone Number:*	012365478988				
Choose Security Question:*	What was your childhood I				
Answer:*	Rishi				
Fields marked with (*) are Note: mandatory					
Cancel		Update User			

Figure 4.52

You can change all your account details listed above using this option. We recommend you to change your password and security question/answer when you login first time.

4.14 Update Instruments

You can update the details of your instruments using this option such as IP address, port, location, GPS coordinates, etc. Click the Update Instrument link as shown in figure 4.53

Instrument is sampling or	CUSTOMER O
	Update Instruments
Instrument is sampling of	Log out

Figure 4.53

This will show you the instrument list to select an instrument as discussed in section 4.1.1. After you have selected an instrument, the application shows you the details of that instrument and allows you to change them as shown in the figure 4.54

🗏 Update Instrument	t Details		
Instrument ID:*	02215	Warrington t Instrument 1	
Instrument Name:*	Osiris		
Instrument Type:*	0		
Country:*	United Kingdom		
City:*	Northwich		
Location Detail:	Office		
Latitude:	53.2667		
Longitude:	-2.50000		
IP Address:*	o2215.airq.org		<i>h</i>
Port Number:*	10001		
Wind Master:*	💌 <u>(?)</u>		
Wind Slave of:	Master]	
Visibility:	Private]	
Note:	Fields marked with (*) are mandatory		
Cancel	Update		

Figure 4.54

If the instrument has its own anemometer to measure wind speed and direction then you must check <u>Wind</u> <u>Master</u> check box otherwise, you can get the wind data from another instrument using the <u>Wind Slave of</u> option. You can keep some notes in the memo box on the right-hand side.

4.15 Special Instructions for Error Correction

When you are using the Visualize Data option you can see a message saying,

"Sorry, there is no data available. Please select the date(s) again".

Please select different dates and search again.

When you are communicating with the instrument to start/stop sampling or Upload data or configuration you may see a message like,

"Could not establish the connection with the instrument".

Please try again. If you see this message again and again, you will have to check the instrument's IP address and port and the internet connection. This may occur if the port that instrument uses is blocked or if the instrument is talking to other application such as AirQ (Desktop application). Please contact support in case of technical problem.

Loss of Contact: On the main panel, you may see a notification saying,

"AirQWeb lost contact with instrument# at date and time".

This notification can be temporary if the instrument is talking to another application such as "AirQ desktop". AirQWeb keeps on trying to re-establish the connection. If the connection is not re-established within one hour AirQWeb will generate a loss of contact alert (if enabled in "Email & SMS Alerts" options). AirQWeb automatically uploads the data from the instrument's memory when the connection is re-established. If you see long gaps in the data you can manually upload the data using the "Upload Data" option from the left menu (the long gaps occur when the instrument is not sampling, probably due to power issues).

4.16 Caveats and Exceptions

If the application crashes or does not display the data please contact support.